
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA 

5. DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

6. CONSENT AGENDA: 
A. Approval of Minutes – February 19, 2019 

B. Budget to Date – January 2019 

C. Approval of Suburban Rate Authority First Half Assessment 

D. First Quarter Billing for 2020 Payable 2021 Property Tax Assessment – Ken Tolzmann 

E. Application for Temporary Intoxicating Liquor License – Spring Lake Park Lions; Tower Days 

June 9, 2019 – Lakeside Park 

F. Exempt Gambling Permit – Ducks Unlimited; May 4, 2019 – Torg Brewery 

G. Public Works Director Salary Adjustment 

H. Accept Letters of Resignation of Employment – Building Official Brainard and Code 

Enforcement Official Caldwell 

7. CODE ENFORCEMENT REPORT 

8. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

A.   Resolution 19-02 Permanently Transferring Monies From Public Utility Operations To Public  

       Utility Renewal and Replacement 

B.   Resolution 19-03 Approving A Conditional Use Permit For 8232 Highway 65 NE, To Permit  

       Assembly Uses And Offices With Merchandising Services 

9. ENGINEERS REPORT 

A.  Municipal State Aid Account 

10. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

11. REPORTS 

A.  Beyond the Yellow Ribbon Report 

12. OTHER 

A. Administrator Reports 

13. ADJOURN 

 

 

 

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS AND  

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, March 4, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 

 
 



RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS AND 
DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

**Limited to 3 minutes per person to state their concern. 

**Action: Council direction to staff for resolution or take this matter under advisement 
for action at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Advise audience that the purpose of the public hearing is to receive citizen input on the 
proposal to (name of project). (This is not a time to debate the issue.) 

The following f01mat will be used to conduct the hearing: 

** The presenter will have a maximum of 10 minutes to explain the project as proposed. 

** Councilmembers will have an opp01iunity to ask questions or comment on the 
proposal. 

** Citizens will then have an opportunity to ask questions and/or comment on the 
project. Those wishing to comment are asked to limit their comments to 3 minutes, 
except in cases where there is a spokesperson representing a group wishing to have their 
collective opinions voiced. The spokesperson should identify the audience group her/she 
is representing and may have a maximum of 10 minutes to express the views of the 
group. 

**People wishing to comment are asked to state any new facts they may have within the 
3 minutes allotted. Please be specific and to the point. 

** Everyone will be given the opportunity to express their agreement or disagreement 
even if they have no new points to make. (This is not a time to debate the issue.) 

* * People wishing to speak twice will be given 2 minutes to comment on any new facts 
brought forward since the last time they spoke. 

Following public input, the Council will have a second opportunity to ask questions of 
the presenter and/or citizens. 

The public hearing will then be adjourned with the Council taking the matter under 
advisement until the next regularly scheduled Council meeting. At the next regular 
meeting, the Council will debate the issue, if necessary, state their positions and make a 
decision. NO further public input will be received at that time. 



  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 

was held on February 19, 2019 at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at  

7:00 P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Mayor Hansen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2.  Roll Call 

 

Members Present: Councilmembers, Wendling, Delfs, Goodboe-Bisschoff and Mayor Hansen 

 

Members Absent: Councilmember Nelson 

 

Staff Present: Police Chief Ebeltoft; Public Works Director Randall; Parks and Recreation Director 

Rygwall; Administrator Buchholtz and Executive Assistant Gooden  

 

Visitors: Paddy Jones, Ham Lake 

        

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Additions or Corrections to Agenda  

 

Mayor Hansen asked to remove Item 11., Attorney’s Report, from the agenda. 

 

5.  Discussion From The Floor – None 

 

A. John Connelly – Twin Cities North Chamber of Commerce 

 

John Connelly provided the Council with a summary of the services that the Twin Cities North Chamber of 

Commerce provides to many of the surrounding communities including Spring Lake Park.  He reported that 

the Chamber of Commerce vision is to be the resource to promote business, develop leaders and connect 

communities. He stated that the Chamber is a direct pipeline for communication and provides many great 

networking outlets for all types of events.   

 

Mr. Connelly reported that the Chamber of Commerce will be very active in the I-35W MNPass project and 

will provide a valuable tool kit for the surrounding communities to share with local businesses within the 

communities to provide accurate information on changes to transportation routes and other valuable 

information within the communities. 

 

6.  Consent Agenda: 

 

Mayor Hansen reviewed the following Consent Agenda items: 

A. Approval of Minutes – February 4, 2019 

B. Disbursements 

 1. General Fund Disbursement Claim No.  19-01 -- $735,467.36 

C. Contractor’s Request for Payment No. 2 – Sanitary Sewer Lining Project 

D.   Sign Permit 

E. Contractor’s Licenses 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 FEBRUARY 19, 2019 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING APPROVING THE CONSENT AGENDA.  ROLL 

CALL VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

7. Police Report 

 

Police Chief Ebeltoft reviewed the January 2019 department statistics. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that the Police Department responded to five hundred ninety nine calls for service for 

the month of January 2019 compared to five hundred thirty seven calls for service in January 2018. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that Investigator Baker reports to handing caseload of 40 cases for the month of January 

2019. He reported that School Resource Officer Chlebeck reported handling 12 calls for service at the local 

schools, along with conducting 32 student contacts, three escorts and three follow up investigations into school 

incidents.  

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported, in addition to addressing the day-to-day operations of the Department, he attended 

numerous meetings throughout the month representing Spring Lake Park Police Department and the City of 

Spring Lake Park.  

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired if the meeting that Chief Ebeltoft attended with “Total Auto Sales” 

Representatives included discussion of selling forfeited vehicles and old squad vehicles. Chief Ebeltoft stated 

that “Total Auto Sales” would look at taking vehicles that are not up to standards for the vehicle auction. 

 

8.  Parks and Recreation Report 

 

Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall reported that the Parks and Recreation Commission met and elected 

their officers for 2019.  She reported that the Commission discussed plans for the summer fest that will take 

place on Wednesday evenings from June through August.  She stated that the Commission is in need of 

members to join the Commission. 

 

Ms. Rygwall reviewed the department statistics and reported that staff was busy preparing for the senior 

Valentine luncheon and starting on Tower Days preparations. She stated that the Dine and Dance event, 

scheduled for Wednesday evenings this summer, will have food available to purchase from the Beyond the 

Yellow Ribbon Committee.  

 

Ms. Rygwall reported that softball registration has started and applications for the community garden plots at 

Sanburnol Park are now being accepted. She reported that a new aerator was ordered for Spring Lake.  

 

9.  New Business 

 

A. Authorization to Purchase New Traffic Speed Trailer 

 

Police Ebeltoft reported that on April 30, 2009, the Police Department was able to purchase the current speed 

trailer used from the City of Burnsville for $800.00. He reported that since that date, the Spring Lake Park 

Police Department has utilized the speed trailer within the City to help address traffic speed issued and effect 

potential positive change for those driving on the roadways and the residents living in the City. 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 FEBRUARY 19, 2019 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that over time, the speed trailer has required numerous repairs and maintenance.   He 

stated that he began researching and learned that the current speed trailer was manufactured in May 1997. 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that the Police Department has limited deployment of the speed trailer last year due to 

continuing mechanical issues.  He stated that he believes that utilizing a speed trailer in the community does 

promote traffic safety, provides a means of education and is a very valuable tool for law enforcement to utilize 

for effecting positive change without having to always issued traffic citations and further backlog the court 

systems. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that he researched several vendors and found a new speed trailer from “All Traffic 

Solutions”. He presented the quote and related information to the Council for authorization to purchase a new 

speed trailer. He reported that the quoted price for the speed trailer is $8,070.00.  He stated that he funds to 

purchase the new speed trailer would be taken from Fund 248, Traffic Education Fund. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO AUTHORIZE PURCHASE OF TRAFFIC SPEED TRAILER 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $8,070.00. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

B.  Authorization to Prepare Plans and Bidding for 2019 Sewer Lining Project 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that for the past several years the City has completed a sanitary sewer lining 

project as part of a long-term effort to maintain the City’s infrastructure. He stated that Public Works Director 

Randall determined a priority sewer repair area for the 2019 lining.  He reported that in preparation for a 2019 

lining project, he hired a sewer televising company to complete a preliminary inspection of the sewer lines in 

the priority repair area. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the proposed 2019 work includes the sewer lines in the area east and 

west of Highway 65 and south of 81st Avenue.  He stated that in addition to lining of the sewer mains, sewer 

service connections wyes will be repaired where warranted. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the precise limits of the project will be determined based on available 

project budget as determined by Mr. Randall and himself.  He requested that the City Council order preparation 

of plans and specifications and authorize bidding for the 2019 Sanitary Sewer Line Project.  He stated that bid 

results will be presented to the Council for approval later in the spring. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO AUTHORIZE PREPARATION OF PLANS AND BIDDING 

FOR THE 2019 SEWER LINING PROJECT. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

10.  Engineer’s Report - None 

 

11.  Attorney’s Report – None 

 

12.  Reports 

 

A. Administrator Reports 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that he attended a Rice Creek Watershed District public hearing regarding 

grant funding for the city’s Garfield Pond application.  He stated that notification of the grant decision will be 

made on February 27, 2019. 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 FEBRUARY 19, 2019 

 

Administrator Buchholtz requested a Council work session for March 4, 2019 at 5:30 PM for a presentation by 

Anoka County on the Osborne Road Project taking place in 2020. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that he would be participating on a panel and speaking legislative advocacy 

at the League of Minnesota conference on February 21, 2019. 

 

13.  Other - None 

 

14.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO ADJOURN.  VOICE VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:30 PM. 

 

                    __________________________________ 

                    Cindy Hansen, Mayor  

 

Attest: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 



























































 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  February 22, 2019 

Subject: Public Works Director Salary Adjustment 
 
Public Works Director Randall has informed me that he has applied for a Public Works Utilities 
Superintendent position in a nearby community that is offering a higher salary. 
 
Due to his experience with managing our public works and utility departments, Mr. Randall is an 
asset to the City of Spring Lake Park that we would like to retain.  His loss would be a tremendous 
blow to the City.  Therefore, staff is recommending matching the salary being offered by the other 
community. 
 
Currently, the Public Works Director salary range is $35.60 - $45.64/hour ($74,048-
$94,931/year).  Staff is proposing a market rate adjustment to bring the range to $37.17 - 
$47.65/hour ($77,310 - $99,112/year).  This new salary is in the range of what Public Works 
Directors in other similar sized cities to Spring Lake Park earn. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed salary adjustment and authorizes staff to take actions 
commensurate with implementing the proposed salary adjustment. 
 
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 





























 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  February 15, 2019 

Subject: Public Utilities Transfers 
 
City staff is seeking City Council approval for transfers to address a long standing issue within the 
Public Utilities Fund. 
 
Capital improvements are paid for with cash balance in Fund 600, Public Utilities Renewal and 
Replacement, Fund.  In the past, during the preparation of the annual financial statements (the 
audit), the assets purchased with cash from Fund 600 were capitalized in Fund 601, Public 
Utilities Operations.  Over the years, this has had a negative impact on the cash balance of Fund 
600, creating a deficit situation, while adding cash to Fund 601. 
 
Proper accounting would have had the assets capitalized in the same fund from which cash was 
used to pay for them.  The City’s auditor, Smith Schafer, and City staff concur and have developed 
the following transfers to place an operating reserve in Fund 600 and place the remaining cash and 
assets into Fund 601. 
 
From an audited financial statement standpoint, these changes will mean nothing.  The auditor 
currently combines Fund 600 and Fund 601 to calculate the Utility Fund (Proprietary Fund).  
These changes are for the City’s internal accounting of the utility fund. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 19-02.  If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate 
to contact me at 763-784-6491. 





RESOLUTION NO. 19-02 

RESOLUTION PERMANENTLY TRANSFERRING MONIES FROM PUBLIC UTILITY 

OPERATIONS TO PUBLIC UTILITY RENEWAL AND REPLACEMENT 

WHEREAS, the annual audit of the City’s 2017 financial records was conducted in 2018; and 

WHEREAS, due to the previous way of accounting for the capitalization of assets in the Public 

Utility Operations Fund with funds from the Public Utility Renewal and Replacement Fund, there is 

a cash deficit in the Public Utility Renewal and Replacement Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s auditor and City staff agree that changing the accounting practice for 

the public utility fund to capitalize assets in the same fund as the cash used to pay for said assets is 

appropriate; and 

WHEREAS, to implement this accounting change, a number of transfers are needed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake 

Park that the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer is hereby authorized to make the transfers specified in 

Appendix A, which is hereby attached.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the effective date of the transfer is January 1, 2018. 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Councilmember . 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 

And the following voted against the same:  

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 4th day of March, 2019. 

APPROVED BY: 

___________________________________ 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator 



APPENDIX A

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

Dan would like us to transfer the assets out of Fund 601 (operating) to Fund 600 (renewal and replacement).

2017 AUDIT BALANCE DR/(CR)

BALANCE 
AFTER 

ADJUSTMENT
601.00000.10100 CASH IN BANK 0.00 1,000,000.00    1,000,000.00    
601.00000.16100 WATER STRUCTURES 6,553,078.00 (6,553,078.00)  - 
601.00000.16300 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 0.00 - - 
601.00000.16301 MAINS & LINES-WATER 1,840,845.00 (1,840,845.00)  - 
601.00000.16302 MAINS & LINES-SEWER 2,865,740.00 (2,865,740.00)  - 
601.00000.16310 ACCUM DEPREC-LAND IMPROV (3,834,607.00) 3,834,607.00    - 
601.00000.16312 DEPREC-WATER MAIN (643,718.00) 643,718.00       - 
601.00000.16313 DEPREC-SEWER MAINS (1,157,858.00) 1,157,858.00    - 
601.00000.16399 WATER EQUIPMENT 344,488.00 (344,488.00)     - 
601.00000.16401 SEWER EQUIPMENT 371,967.00 (371,967.00)     - 
601.00000.16410 DEPREC-WATER EQUIPMENT (265,199.00) 265,199.00       - 
601.00000.16411 DEPREC-SEWER EQUIPMENT (352,312.00) 352,312.00       - 
601.00000.07000 TRANSFERS OUT 4,722,424.00    4,722,424.00    

600.00000.10100 CASH IN BANK 3,357,206.00 (1,000,000.00)  2,357,206.00    
600.00000.16100 WATER STRUCTURES 0.00 6,553,078.00    6,553,078.00    
600.00000.16300 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 0.00 - - 
600.00000.16301 MAINS & LINES-WATER 0.00 1,840,845.00    1,840,845.00    
600.00000.16302 MAINS & LINES-SEWER 154,390.00 2,865,740.00    3,020,130.00    
600.00000.16310 ACCUM DEPREC-LAND IMPROV 0.00 (3,834,607.00)  (3,834,607.00)  
600.00000.16312 DEPREC-WATER MAIN 0.00 (643,718.00)     (643,718.00)     
600.00000.16313 DEPREC-SEWER MAINS 0.00 (1,157,858.00)  (1,157,858.00)  
600.00000.16399 WATER EQUIPMENT 0.00 344,488.00       344,488.00       
600.00000.16401 SEWER EQUIPMENT 0.00 371,967.00       371,967.00       
600.00000.16410 DEPREC-WATER EQUIPMENT 0.00 (265,199.00)     (265,199.00) 
600.00000.16411 DEPREC-SEWER EQUIPMENT 0.00 (352,312.00)     (352,312.00)     
600.00000.39200 OTHER TRANSFERS (4,722,424.00)  (4,722,424.00)  

New accounts need to be added in Fund 600

Note: City will want to pass resolution to transfer cash from Fund 601 to Fund 600. 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-03 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR 8232 HIGHWAY 

65 NE, TO PERMIT ASSEMBLY USES AND OFFICES WITH MERCHANDISING 

SERVICES 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Minnesota Conference of Seventh-Day Adventists has made application 

for a conditional use permit to allow assembly uses and an office with merchandising services in 

the C-1, Shopping Center Commercial, zoning district to accommodate their administrative 

headquarters; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the property is legally described as follows: 

 

All that part of Lot 3, Block 1, Middletown, Anoka County, Minnesota, lying East 

of a line described as beginning at a point on the North line of said Lot 3, distant 

646.85 feet East from the Northwest corner thereof, thence Southwesterly at an 

angle of 63 degrees 06 minutes 07 seconds as measured from West to South a 

distance of 549.84 feet, thence Southeasterly deflecting to the left 88 degrees 44 

minutes 09 seconds a distance of 80 feet to the point of curve on the Southerly line 

of said Lot 3, thence continuing Southeasterly along said Southerly line 120 feet to 

the Southeast corner of said Lot 3 and there terminating; and 

 

WHEREAS, mailed and published notice of a public hearing to consider the proposed 

conditional use permit was given; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing to consider the proposed conditional use permit was held by 

the Planning Commission on February 25, 2019; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has recommended approval of the conditional use 

permit, subject to conditions; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council considered the Commission’s recommendation on the 

epress/cartage services use and reviewed the site plan application at its March 4, 2019 meeting. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring 

Lake Park, Minnesota that the City Council hereby approves a conditional use permit to Minnesota 

Conference of Seventh-Day Adventists to permit a assembly uses and an office with 

merchandising services at 8232 Highway 65 NE, subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. Applicant shall verify square footages to the zoning administrator to verify parking 

requirements. 

2. Applicant shall ensure occupancy of assembly room shall not exceed capacity as set 

forth in the State Building and Fire Codes and available parking. 

  



 

3. Applicant will ensure that the bookstore will not ship nor receive large amounts of 

books/materials that require frequent truck deliveries. 

4. Applicant shall comply with all conditions of the special use permit approved by the 

Spring Lake Park City Council on April 5, 2004. 

 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by . 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:  

 

And the following voted against the same:  

 

  

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 4th day of March, 2019. 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

 

 



 
Memorandum 
To:   Chair Hansen and Members of the Planning Commission 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  February 19, 2019 

Subject: Conditional Use Permit – Minnesota Conference of Seventh-Day Adventists 
 
Background 
 
The Minnesota Conference of Seventh-Day Adventists has entered into a purchase agreement to 
purchase the Middletown Professional Building at 8232 Highway 65 NE.  The property is guided 
commercial and zoned C-1, Shopping Center Commercial. 
 
The Minnesota Conference of Seventh-Day 
Adventists plan to utilize the building for 
their administrative headquarters, for large 
group trainings and for a small bookstore.  
Offices, with merchandising services are 
considered a Conditional Use in the C-1 
zoning district.  Large group trainings would 
be classified as an assembly use, which is 
considered a Conditional Use in the C-1 
zoning district.  One existing tenant 
(physical therapy) will remain in the 
building until the remainder of their 2 year 
lease expires. 
 
The site is located on the west side of 
Highway 65 NE, just south of the CSAH 
10/Highway 65 interchange.  To the west is 
the Cottages townhome development; to 
the south is Hopes Chinese buffet; to the north is Brew and Grow MN; and to the east is the 
future Hy-Vee location. 
 
A conditional use permit was obtained from the City in 2004 to construct a 19,000 sf building 
adjacent to a residential district.  The conditions associated with the 2004 approval would 
continue to be in force for this change of use. 
  



 
Conditional Use Permits 
 
Section §153.202 of the City of Spring Lake Park’s zoning code outlines the requirements to 
approve a conditional use permit: 

1. The City Council may then authorize the conditional use permit, provided the applicant 
has provided evidence establishing the following: 

a. The proposed use at the particular location requested is necessary or desirable to 
provide a service or facility which is in the interest of public convenience and will 
contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community – The 
applicant states that the building will serve as the administrative headquarters for 
the Minnesota Conference of Seventh-Day Adventists.  The applicant also states 
that a portion of the building will be used as a bookstore for their membership and 
for training of employees and church members. 

b. The use will not, under the circumstances of the particular case, be detrimental 
to the health, safety, morals or general welfare of persons residing or working the 
in the vicinity or injurious to property values or improvements in the vicinity – 
The applicant will be utilizing this building primarily for their administrative 
offices.  Office uses, with merchandising services, as well as training facilities 
consistent with similar uses along the State Highway 65 corridor. 

c. The proposed use will comply with the regulations specified in this chapter for 
the district in which the proposed use is to be located – The applicant plans to 
make any necessary modifications to the building to ensure the property meets 
building and fire code regulations. 

d. The use is one of the conditional uses specifically listed for the district in which is 
to be located – Assembly uses and offices with merchandising services are 
permitted as a conditional use within the C-1 Shopping Center Commercial 
district (See Appendix D of the Zoning Code) 

e. The proposed use shall not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of 
other property in the immediate vicinity – The current use of the building is 
medical office.  The transition from medical office to office, with merchandising 
services, will have a minimal impact on the surrounding property owners. 

f. The use will not lower property values or impact scenic views in the surrounding 
area – The building is very attractive.  The applicant has no plans to modify the 
exterior of the current facility or use it in any way that would be a detriment to the 
community. 

g. Existing streets and highways and proposed access roads will be adequate to 
accommodate anticipated traffic – The building is serviced by both Middletown 
Road and the County Road 10 service drive, both streets have adequate capacity to 
service this use. 



h. Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the 
proposed use – There are currently 103 parking spaces servicing this building.  The 
proposed uses are as follows: 

Assembly use (1space/100 sf)   45 parking spaces 
Office (4 spaces/1,000 sf)   32 parking spaces 
Current Tenant (6 spaces/1,000 sf)  14 parking spaces 
Bookstore (10 spaces/1,000 sf)  12 parking spaces 
Total Parking Requirement   103 parking spaces 

The parking lot appears to have sufficient parking for the proposed uses.  Staff will 
want to verify the square footages to ensure proper parking calculations. 

i. The use includes adequate protection for the natural drainage system and natural 
topography – The site has adequate drainage and has not caused any drainage 
issues for neighboring properties.  It is important to note that the applicant, should 
they proceed with the purchase of the building, will be responsible for maintenance 
on the storm water pond located to the north of the building. 

j. The proposed use includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive 
odor, fumes, dust, noise or vibration so that none of these will constitute a 
nuisance – The applicant stated that they have no equipment that would create 
these nuisances. 

k. The proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density 
standards – The applicant stated that the administrative office use is compatible 
with the overall density of the surrounding neighborhood. 

 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council approval of the 
conditional use permit with the following conditions: 

1. Applicant shall verify square footages to the zoning administrator to verify parking 
requirements 

2. Applicant shall ensure occupancy of assembly room shall not exceed capacity as set 
forth in the State Building Code. 

3. Applicant will ensure that the bookstore will not ship nor receive large amounts of 
books/material that require frequent truck deliveries. 

4. Applicant shall comply with all conditions of the 2004 special use permit. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this application, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-
784-6491. 





























































DRAFT PROCEEDINGS 

Minutes of the Spring Lake Park Planning Commission regularly scheduled meeting held on February 25, 

2019 at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 P.M. 

1. Call to Order

Chairperson Bernhagen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

2. Roll Call

Members Present: Commissioners Julien, Bernhagen, Eischens and Cobbs 

Members Absent: Commissioners Hansen and Dircks 

Staff Present: Building Official Brainard; Administrator Buchholtz and Executive 

Assistant Gooden 

Visitors: Councilmember Delfs 

Justin C. Lyons, Minnesota Conference of Seventh-Day Adventists 

Michael Sims, Minnesota Conference of Seventh-Day Adventists 

Patrick J. Kelly, Kelly & Lemmons, P.A. 

3. Pledge of Allegiance

4. Elect Officers

A. Elect Chair

Vice Chairperson Bernhagen opened nominations for Chairperson. 

Commissioner Eischens nominated Hans Hansen as chairperson for the year 2019. 

Vice Chairperson Bernhagen called three times for further nominations and hearing none, declared 

nominations closed. 

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS; SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER COBBS TO 

SUSPEND THE RULES AND CAST AN UNANIMOUS BALLOT TO ELECT HANS HANSEN OF 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION FOR THE YEAR 2018. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION 

CARRIED. 

B. Vice Chair

Vice Chairperson Bernhagen opened nominations for Vice Chairperson. 

Commissioner Eischens nominated Jeff Bernhagen as Vice Chairperson for the year 2019. 

Vice Chairperson Bernhagen called three times for further nominations and hearing none, declared 

nominations closed. 

DRAFT



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 FEBRUARY 25, 2019 

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER COBBS TO 

SUSPEND THE RULES AND CASE AN UNANIMOUS BALLOT TO ELECT JEFF BERNHAGEN 

VICE CHAIRPERSON OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION FOR THE YEAR 2019.  ROLL CALL 

VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

5. Approval of Minutes – October 22, 2018

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER COBBS, 

APPROVING THE MINUTES OF OCTOBER 22, 2018.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES.  MOTION 

CARRIED. 

6. Public Hearing – Conditional Use Permit – Minnesota Conference of Seventh-Day Adventists – 8232

     Highway 65 NE 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the City received a Conditional Use Permit application from the 

Minnesota Conference of Seventh-Day Adventists to utilize the Middletown Professional Building located 

at 8232 Highway 65 NE. He stated that the Minnesota Conference of Seventh-Day Adventists have entered 

a purchase agreement for the building.  He reported that the property is guided commercial and zoned C-1, 

Shopping Center Commercial. 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the Minnesota Conference of Seventh-Day Adventists plan to utilize 

the building for their administrative headquarters, for large trainings and for a small bookstore.  He stated 

that offices with merchandising services are considered a Conditional Use in the C-1 zoning district.  He 

explained that large group trainings would be classified as an assembly use, which is considered a 

Conditional Use in the C-1 zoning district.  He reported that one existing tenant (physical therapy) will 

remain in the building until the remainder of their two-year lease expires. 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the site is located on the west side of Highway 65 NE, just south of 

the CSAH 10 Highway 65 interchange.  He stated that a conditional use permit was obtained from the City 

in 2004 to construct a 19,000 sf building adjacent to a residential district.  He stated the conditions 

associated with the 2004 approval would continue to be in force for this change of use. 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that Section §153.202 of the City of Spring Lake Park zoning code 

outlines the requirements to approve a conditional use permit. He stated that the City Council may then 

authorize the conditional use permit, provided the applicant has provided evidence establishing the 

following: 

a. The proposed use at the particular location requested is necessary or desirable to provide

a service or facility which is in the interest of public convenience and will contribute to the

general welfare of the neighborhood or community – The applicant stated that the building

will service as the administrative headquarters for the Minnesota Conference of Seventh-Day

Adventists.  He stated that the applicant also states that a portion of the building will be used as

a bookstore for their membership and for training of employees and church members.

b. The use will not, under the circumstances of the particular case, be detrimental to the

health, safety, morals or general welfare of persons residing or working in the vicinity or

injurious to property values or improvements in the vicinity - The applicant will be utilizing

this building primary for their administrative offices. Office uses, with merchandising services,

as well as training facilities consistent with similar uses along the State Highway 65 corridor.

DRAFT



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 FEBRUARY 25, 2019 

 

 

 

  

 c.  The proposed use will comply with the regulations specified in this chapter for the district 

      in which the prosed use is to be located. – The applicant plans to make any necessary    

                  modifications to the building to endure the property meets building and fire code regulations. 

 

 d.  The use is one of the conditional uses specifically listed for the district in which is to be  

                  located – Assembly uses and offices with merchandising services are permitted as a conditional  

                  use within the C-1 shopping Center Commercial district (See Appendix D of the Zoning Code). 

 

 e.  The proposed use shall have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of  other  

                  property in the immediate vicinity - The current use of the building is medical office.  The   

                  transition from medial office to office, with merchandising services, will have a minimal impact  

                  on the surrounding property owners. 

 

 f.   The use will not lower property values or impact scenic views in the surrounding area –    

      The building is very attractive. The applicant has no plans to modify the exterior of the current   

                  facility or use it in any way that would be detriment to the community. 

 

 g.   Existing streets and highways and proposed access roads will be adequate to accommodate  

                   anticipated traffic – The building is serviced by both Middletown Road and the County Road   

                   10 service drive, both streets have adequate capacity to service this use. 

 

 h.   Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the proposed use 

       There are currently 103 parking spaces servicing this building. The proposed uses are as   

 follows: 

   Assembly use (1 space/100 sf)  45 parking spaces  

   Office (4 spaces/1,000 sf)  32 parking spaces  

   Current Tenant (6 spaces/1,000 sf) 14 parking spaces  

   Bookstore (10 spaces/1,000 sf)  12 parking spaces 

   Total Parking Requirement  103 parking spaces 
 The parking lot appears to have sufficient parking for the proposed uses. Staff will want to verify 

 the square footages to ensure proper parking calculations. 

 

 i.   The use includes adequate protection for the natural drainage system and natural      

                   topography – The site has adequate drainage and has not caused any drainage issues for  

                   neighboring properties. It is important to note that the applicant, should they proceed with the  

                   purchase of the building, will be responsible for maintenance on the storm water pond located  

 to the north of the building. 

 

 j.   The proposed use includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, 

      dust, noise or vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance – The applicant stated 

      that they have no equipment that would create these nuisances. 

 

 k.  The proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density  

      standards- The applicant stated that the administrative office use is compatible with the      

                  overall density of the surrounding neighborhood. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend to the 

City Council approval of the conditional use permit with the following conditions: 

DRAFT



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 FEBRUARY 25, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 1.  Applicant shall verify square footages to the zoning administrator to verify parking     

                   requirements. 

 2.  Applicant shall ensure occupancy off assembly room shall not exceed capacity as set forth in  

                  the State Building and Fire Codes and available parking. 

 3.  Applicant will ensure that the bookstore will not ship not receive large amounts of  

                  books/material that require frequent truck deliveries. 

 4.  Applicant shall comply with all conditions of the 2004 special use permit. 

 

Commissioner Eischens inquired how often the facility would be used for assembly.  Mr. Lyons stated that 

the facility could be used one or two times a year to its capacity for a large gathering such as employee 

trainings. He stated that smaller trainings and gatherings would take place one time a month and usually on 

a Saturday. 

 

Commission Bernhagen inquired as what time of the day the facility would be used for large assemblies. 

Mr. Lyons stated that generally training sessions start in the morning (9:00 or 10:00 AM) and end in the 

late afternoon (3:00 or 4:00 PM). He stated that they are usually held on a Saturday. He stated that the 

community is welcome to utilize the building for events during when it is not in use. 

 

Building Official Brainard reported that a maximum occupancy capacity will be set on the assembly room. 

He stated that the capacity will be set during the time of the Certificate of Occupancy inspection. 

 

Mr. Brainard inquired if the MRI machine that is currently in the building will be removed and the lead 

walls sealed.  Mr. Sims reported that the MRI machine is scheduled to removed and the wall will be 

enclosed.  He stated that the building has sprinklers and exterior doors can be added if needed for additional 

exits. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz inquired if the facility would bring new employment to the area.  Mr. Lyons stated 

that the Minnesota Chapter has grown significantly over the years and he is anticipating that the 

employment to continue to grow at this facility with full time positions being added. 

 

Vice Chairperson Bernhagen opened the public hearing at 7:24 PM. There was no discussion from the 

floor. 

 

Vice Chairperson Bernhagen closed the public hearing at 7:24 PM. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COMMISSION COBBS, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER JULIEN TO 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT WITH THE FOLLOWING 

CONDITIONS: 1.)  APPLICANT SHALL VERIFY SQUARE FOOTAGES TO THE ZONING 

ADMINISTRATOR TO VERIFY PARKING REQUIREMENTS; 2.)  APPLICANT SHALL ENSURE 

OCCUPANCY OF ASSEMBLY ROOM SHALL NOT EXCEED CAPACITY AS SET FORTH IN THE 

STATE BUILDING AND FIRE CODES AND AVAILABLE PARKING; 3.) APPLICANT SHALL 

ENSURE THAT THE BOOKSTORE WILL NOT SHIP NOT RECEIVE LARGE AMOUNTS OF 

BOOKS/MATERIAL THAT REQUIRE FREQUENT TRUCK DELIVERIES; 4.) APPLICANT SHALL 

COMPLY WITH ALL CONDITIONS OF THE 2004 SPECIAL USE PERMIT. ROLL CALL VOTE: 

ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

 

 

DRAFT



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 FEBRUARY 25, 2019 

 

 

 

7. Reports 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that comments have been received from the Metropolitan Council on 

the 2040 Comprehensive Plan. He stated that staff has been working on the items for improvement and a 

public hearing will be held for additional feedback before forwarding the Plan to the City Council for 

final approval.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the wall to the Hy-Vee structure have been started and the roof will 

soon be installed.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz welcomed Eric Julien to the Commission. 

 

8.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER DIRCKS, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER SMITH TO ADJOURN.  

VOICE VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:31 PM. 

DRAFT





 

 

 

 
City of Spring Lake Park  

Engineer’s Project Status Report 
 

 

To: Council Members and Staff  Re: Status Report for 3.4.19 Meeting       
 

From:  Phil Gravel     File No.: R-18GEN  
 

 

Note:  Updated information is shown in italics.    

 
MS4 Permit (193802936). 
Annual Training was completed in December.  2019 Report and Annual Public Meeting completed in June.      

 
Local Surface Water Management Plan (LSWMP) (193803949). 
An updated LSWMP based on comments received from the various review agencies has been prepared and 
distributed to appropriate agencies.  Rice Creek Watershed has approved.  Coon Creek Watershed has 
given conditional approval.  Currently working with the Administrator on Ordinance revisions.       

 
2018 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (193804547). 
This project includes sewer lining in the northeast area of the city.  Service wye grouting continues.  
Repair of the problem segment will occur in mid-March.  Terry Randall is monitoring the work.                                  

 
2019 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (193804547). 
This project includes sewer lining in the area near TH65 and Osborne Rd.  The City council 
authorized the preparation of plans and specifications and obtaining bids at the February 19th 
meeting.                                    

 
2019 Street Seal Coat and Crack Fill Project (193804625). 
This project includes streets in the area north of 18st Avenue between Monroe and Able.  Plans 
and specifications have been prepared.  Bids will be received on March 12th.  Council can consider 
contract award on March 18th.   
 
Wells 4 and 5 (193804554): Contractor is Keys Well Drilling.  Well 4 was video inspected on October 31 
and found to be in good condition. Well 4 is now operating.  Well 5 rehabilitation work continues.  The 
Well 5 pump has been repaired and is ready to be reinstalled.    

 
Arthur Street (Well 5) Water Treatment Plant Evaluation (193801776 Task 300): A summary list 
of identified plant issues has been prepared and reviewed by the Administrator and Public Works 
Director.  Calibration tubes for chemical feed systems have been added.  Infrared testing of 
electrical equipment has been completed.  Recent water sample results are better but not below 
desired levels.  Filter media has been cleaned and a quote has been received for total replacement 
of the filter media.     

 
Bituminous Trail (on Osborne Rd. from TH 65 to Central Avenue)(193804584):  This segment may 
be reconstructed in the summer of 2019. Plans and specifications have been sent to St Paul 
Regional Water Services (SPRWS) and Anoka County for review.  A tentative bid opening date 
has been set for April 30th.               

 
Garfield Pond Improvements Project (19380xxxx):  This project is located along 81st Avenue on 
the south side of the intersection of 81st and Arthur.  This project was identified through the 
LSWMP preparation process because of flooding and water quality issues.  A grant application for 
partial project funding has been submitted to the Rice Creek Watershed District (RCWD).   



 Spring Lake Park – Engineers Report   -   Page 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Cellular Antenna Installations on Water Towers:   
 

 Verizon on Arthur Street tower.  This is a new installation.  Revised Construction Drawings 
were submitted in December 2018 and have been reviewed.  Lease issues are being discussed.   

 

 AT&T on Arthur Street tower. Replacement/modification project.  4th Amendment to Lease was 
approved on 11/19/18. Revision 4 Construction Drawings (CDs) dated 10/17/18 are approvable from 
and engineering standpoint.   
 

 T-Mobile Utility Upgrade/Backup power (generator) - Able Street tower.  This project 
includes installing a permanent generator.  An escrow account has been established.  Initial review 
of the construction drawings has been completed.  Lease and easement issues need to be worked 
out.    

 
 
 
Other issues/projects.    
 
Dominium Project.  A new site walkthrough inspection was completed on September 25th.  A site 
punch-list with remaining site improvement work (including street patching) has been prepared.   
 
Hy-Vee Project.  Site grading plan has been reviewed and approved by public works/engineering.  
A Site utility work Preconstruction Conference was held on September 26th.  Sewer and water 
utility connections in 81st Avenue and Central Avenue have been completed.            
 
Public Storage Project.  Plat has been approved.  Developer has obtained a site a permit from 
the Rice Creek Watershed District.  Construction has begun.         
 
Interstate Plaza Project (7700 Hwy 65 NE).  No news.     
 
Wellhead Protection Plan: A Plan Evaluation Report was provided to the Minnesota Department of 
Health (MDH). MDH approved a 10-year extension to the Plan on July 26, 2018.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
... 
 
Feel free to contact Harlan Olson, Phil Carlson, Jim Engfer, Mark Rolfs, Ryan Capelle, Marc Janovec, Ailsa Mcculloch, Peter Allen, or 
me if you have any questions or require any additional information.   








	Blank Page
	Consent - Suburban Rate Authority First Half Assessment.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Ord & Reso - Resolution 19-02 Approving Public Utility Fund Transfers.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page



